


  

 13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Planning Board Members in Attendance: Rick Starodoj, Chairman 
 Ed Murphy, Vice-Chairman  

Nancy Talbot, Clerk  
Kenneth Crosby 
Elizabeth Hancock, Alternate 

 
Staff Members in Attendance: Rob Watchilla, PCD Dept. Director 
                                                                               Kristen Jacobsen, PCD Dept. Admin 
                                                                               
Members of the Public in Attendance:  
 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Chairman R. Starodoj called the meeting to order at 6:59pm and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE 
 
 Approval of Minutes 
 

Motion made by N. Talbot to approve of the minutes from Thursday, August 18th, 2022, with a 
minor correction of adding ‘West’ to Warren Road. Seconded by E. Murphy.  There was no 
additional discussion.   
 
 R. Starodoj Aye 
 E. Murphy Aye 

N. Talbot Aye 
K. Crosby  Absent 
 

All in favor.  Approved 3/0/0. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TOWN OF WARE 
Planning & Community Development 

126 Main Street, Ware, Massachusetts 01082 
t. 413.967.9648 ext. 120 

Planning Board 
Meeting Minutes from 

Thursday, September 1, 2022 
Board of Selectmen’s Meeting Room, Town Hall 

 
 

 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes from 9/1/2022, Page 2 
 

ANR-2022-08 (Coffey Hill) 
 
R. Watchilla stated the preceding ANR plans are delayed until September 15, 2022, and the applicant 
signed an affidavit stating she consented to go over the 20- day waiting period. 
 
R. Watchilla displayed the submitted ANR plans to create three lots which he stated all conform to the 
zoning standards for area and setback and all have adequate access.   
 
Motion made by E. Murphy to approve ANR-2022-08. Seconded by N. Talbot.  There was no additional 
discussion.   

 
 R. Starodoj Aye 
 E. Murphy Aye 

N. Talbot Aye 
K. Crosby  Absent 

All in favor.  Approved 3/0/0. 
 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
K.Crosby arrived at 7:04pm 
 
Review of Newly Proposed Subdivision Regulations 
 
Sections 2.1  
 
R. Watchilla read through section 2.1 which speaks of the importance of submitting plans at the same 
time due to the differing timelines of the permitting process. The section acts as a general disclaimer.  
 
Section 2.2   
 
Section 2.2 provides the disclaimer that the proponent should submit a site analysis map depicting the 
worthy features on the property. A voluntary sketch should also be submitted which could be prepared by 
a professional landscape architect, architect, planner, site designer engineer, or by the proponent. 
 
R. Watchilla stated they do see some preliminary plans, but individuals don’t tend to do the pre-
submission review.  
 
R. Starodoj stated all one would need is a simple sketch and it wouldn’t necessarily have to be prepared 
by a professional. 
 
N. Talbot suggested adding hand drawn sketches could also be submitted. 
 
R. Starodoj suggested eliminating the list of individuals the plan could be drawn by and change it to ‘the 
proponent’. 
 
E. Hancock questioned if the Historical Features mentioned in section A would include the stone walls. R. 
Watchilla confirmed it would. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes from 9/1/2022, Page 3 
 

R. Watchilla continued reading the section that states contact between the Planning Board and the 
applicant should be limited outside of the meeting. Which essentially states; if a member of the planning 
board encounters the proponent outside of the Public Hearing they cannot speak extensively of the 
subdivision.  
 
R. Starodoj added that if someone comes up and engages in conversation with a planning board member 
answering general questions is acceptable if the conversation is limited.  
 
Section 2.3  
 
R. Watchilla stated it offers a way for individuals to skip the preliminary plan should they choose to do 
so.   
 
K. Crosby confirmed that it could be skipped 
 
R. Watchilla stated a proponent could go straight to the definitive plan. The preliminary plan  would  be a 
matter of getting the Planning Board’s feedback. 
 
R. Starodoj asked if someone could come in with a definitive plan. R. Watchilla and K. Crosby confirmed 
they could however, it might be unwise to do so.  
 
R. Watchilla said that was why they usually encourage the proponent to do the preliminary plan which 
could help if the proponent needs any waivers and receive the Planning Board’s feedback. R. Watchilla 
mentioned the lack of a preliminary plan may make the board less keen on accepting the definitive plan. 
 
R. Starodoj stated the lack of preliminary plan did not necessarily make the board less keen on accepting 
a plan. He continued by saying their job isn’t not to deny plans but rather to look at the plan make sure it 
conforms to regulations. R. Starodoj continued by saying their job is not to prevent things from 
happening. 
 
R. Watchilla continued noting the following paragraph encourages a street design. The Complete Streets 
design wasn’t necessary. If the streets could have sidewalks with enough room for bicycles and people 
walking that would be reasonable and desirable but if it doesn’t make sense to put sidewalks in they 
wouldn’t be forced to do so.  
 
R. Watchilla read the following section which stated the centerline of the proposed roadway should be 
adequately staked or flagged. R. Watchilla asked if the Planning Board could recall a time when that had 
been done in the past. R. Starodoj answered that he didn’t believe it was a requirement. He recalled the 
site visit on Monson Turnpike and said in that case they weren’t going to stake out 5000-6000’ of road. 
 
Section 2.3.2 
 
R. Watchilla questioned if sections from 2.3.2 should remain. R. Starodoj agreed that they should and 
suggested that they should also be dispersed to other departments. N. Talbot suggested listing the 
departments. 
 
R. Starodoj suggested that any exhibits displayed during presentation to the Planning Board should stay 
with the Planning Board. N.Talbot clarified anything additional  that is given, documented, or discussed 
must stay with the original documents according to the law.  
 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes from 9/1/2022, Page 4 
 

 
 
Section 2.3.3 
 
R. Starodoj suggested adding right of ways in section D  
 
R. Starodoj proposed adding setbacks should be noted with a dotted line, the well should be displayed 
with 100’ radius around it, and the proposed septic system should be displayed as well. 
 
R. Starodoj suggested adding endangered species and critical habitats to K. 
 
Section 2.3.4 
 
R. Watchilla questioned if applicants needed to be notified via certified mail. N. Talbot responded saying 
the law does not state that rather it was the preference of the previous town planner to have any decisions 
be sent that way. The Planning Board agreed it should be kept in the section. 
 
Section 2.4.2  
 
R. Watchilla suggested adding the other departments (Department of Public Works. Fire Department, 
Police Department, Board of Health, Conservation Department, Historic Commission, and Building 
Department) into the first paragraph of the section. 
 
E. Hancock suggested adding Certified Mail as a way of sending the notice to the Town Clerk. R. 
Starodoj and N. Talbot agreed. The Planning Board members also suggested to remove the option of 
registered mail. 
 
R. Starodoj suggested adding CAD format to the way in which engineering plans should be submitted. 
 
N. Talbot recommended that it should be noted that the cost should be borne by the applicant. 
 
R. Starodoj stated it should be noted that when a subdivision borders an adjacent town the abutters in that 
town should be notified. R. Starodoj also suggested that abutters within a 300’ radius be notified 
 
 
New Business 
 
Snow Plowing of Unaccepted Roads 
 
R. Starodoj wanted to be sure an inspection was scheduled. E. Murphy and K. Crosby stated they would 
go along with other members of the Town. R. Starodoj suggested the owners of the properties should be 
notified of issues or needed repairs with ample time prior to snow plowing season.  
 
R. Watchilla suggested meeting September 21, 2022, at noon and September 22, 2022 as an alternate 
date. E. Murphy and K. Crosby agreed to both dates. R. Starodoj stated it does not preclude other member 
from driving through and offering comments. 
 
R. Starodoj stated he has driven through a few subdivisions lately and he is concerned about the lack of 
maintenance on detention/retention ponds. During the last rainstorm (prior to September 1, 2022) a 
manhole cover in the Wildflower Drive subdivision came loose and was askew. R. Starodoj suggested 
changing the cover to a grate so that it is not a hazard 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes from 9/1/2022, Page 5 
 

 
R. Starodoj suggested touching base with the bank to see where they currently stand with Wildflower 
Drive.  
 
R. Starodoj also suggested contacting Pennybrook Estates and see if they are ready to turn the road over 
to the town.  

 
TOWN PLANNER UPDATE 
 
R. Watchilla stated the Town of Ware had been awarded $40,000 from the Municipal vulnerability 
Program. The grant funding will help with the development of a master plan for the Muddy Brook 
Watershed which will plan a strategy to mitigate the effects of climate change and include preparation for 
increased flood events. 
 
The Façade Improvement Program Application window is still open 
 
The Planning Board is still accepting applications for the vacant seat. 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 

Motion made by N. Talbot to adjourn the meeting at 7:56pm.  Seconded by E. Murphy. No 
additional discussion. 
 
 R. Starodoj Aye 
 E. Murphy Aye 

N. Talbot Aye 
K. Crosby  Aye 
 

All in favor.  Approved 4/0/0. 
 

NEXT PLANNING BOARD MEETING DATE: 
 
Thursday, September 15th, at 7:00pm. 

 
 
Minutes from Thursday, September 1st, 2022. 
 
Respectfully submitted by,  
 
Kristen Jacobsen 
Administrative Assistant 
Planning & Community Development 
  
 
 

 

Minutes Approved on: ________________ 
 
Starodoj   ____________________________ 
 
Murphy    ____________________________ 
 
Talbot   ____________________________ 
 
Crosby   ____________________________ 
 











 
 

   
 

August 10, 2022 
 
Robert Watchilla 
Director of Planning & Community Development 
Town of Ware 
126 Main St. 
Ware, MA 01082 
 
RE: Request for Extension, SPR-2019-03 and SP-2019-04 
 
Dear Rob,  
 
Please accept the enclosed form, signed by John C. Soper as the owner of the real property located at 45 
Greenwich Road, along with this narrative, in approval of a 12-month extension of time to start 
construction for the previously approved permits # SPR-2019-03 and SP-2019-04.   
 
The Special Permit and Site Plan Review for the Ware Solar, LLC project were originally approved on 
September 19, 2019.  Since that time, the project has been continuously undergoing transmission and 
distribution studies administered by National Grid (NG) in coordination with ISO-NE as the Regional 
Transmission Operator.  That study timeline has been complicated by the high volume of applications 
for distributed generation (DG) received by NG since 2018.  Given the increasing levels of renewable 
energy on the grid in MA, ISO-NE and NG began an iterative Area Study process in 2019, which then had 
to be rolled into a replacement study in 2021 due to a combination of DPU’s docket # 20-75 having been 
created in Oct 2020 and changes within the larger study group between 2019-2021.   
 
Results from the transmission side of the 2021-2022 Area Study for Central/Western MA were 
recommended for approval by ISO-NE at the June 14, 2022 Reliability Committee, but an additional 
Group Study has now been opened for the Central/Western Area.  NG currently estimates the 
distribution side of that Area Study will be complete sometime in November 2022.  After that point, NG 
then expects to prepare and submit a CIP plan to the Department of Public Utilities (DPU), which DPU 
would then be expected to respond to in 2023.  NG’s timeline for construction of any utility-side 
upgrades will not be known until their studies are complete but, depending on the nature of NG’s work, 
could certainly extend beyond 2023.  As a result, it’s possible that further extensions may be required to 
follow NG’s timeline as ultimately approved by DPU.  If so, we will submit a further request for extension 
in 2023 after those details are finalized. 
 
  



Your office can refer to Docket #20-75 created by DPU on October 22, 2020 and the related filings, 
which confirm DPU’s on-going process dating back to May 2019.  Also attached for supporting 
documentation is an excerpt from NG’s most recent study update which confirms in the highlighted text 
under Section 9(a) on page 2 that “The ASO study in Central/Western MA has completed and was 
recommended for approval by ISO-NE at the 6/14/2022 RC meeting. One additional Group Study has 
been opened for the Central/Western area and conversations have been initiated with ISO-NE and New 
England Power Company (NEP) relative to course of study as it relates to efficiency and potential scope in 
anticipation of ASO study requirements as the distribution study matures.” 

The study process as noted is beyond the control of Ware Solar, LLC and affects all DG projects greater 
than 1MWac in size within the Central and Western Areas designated by NG.  Such studies are required 
to ensure the integrity of the electric distribution grid as the Commonwealth works to achieve its clean 
energy goals and, since they are beyond the control of the Applicant, constitute “good cause” for a 
corresponding extension of time to the related permits. 

Sincerely, 

Donna Jones 
Manager 
JCD Solar Consulting, LLC 
d/b/a Melink Solar Development 
Managing Member 
Ware Solar, LLC 



1 

DPU 19-55 Distributed Generation Guidelines for Interconnection 

SECTION 1.E.9 MONTHLY ASO STUDY UPDATE 

July 1, 2022 

Table of Contents 
9.a Scope & Process ................................................................................................................................ 2 

9.b Roles and Responsibilities ................................................................................................................. 4 

9.c Standards and Jurisdiction ................................................................................................................ 5 

9.d Estimated Timeline ........................................................................................................................... 7 

9.e Estimated System Modifications & Costs ......................................................................................... 7 

9.f Prioritization System ......................................................................................................................... 8 

9.g Opportunities to Progress Applications ............................................................................................ 8 

9.h Study Results ..................................................................................................................................... 8 

10.a Contact Information .......................................................................................................................... 8 

10.b ASO Stakeholder Update Meetings .................................................................................................. 9 



2 

9.a Scope & Process

At an overall level, when the interconnection of distributed generation (DG) to Massachusetts Electric 
Company’s (MECo) electric power system (EPS) has the potential to impact a neighboring EPS 
(distribution or transmission), further analysis and/or study will be required.  Examples of potential 
impacts on a neighboring EPS include reverse power flow onto the bulk transmission system and the 
establishment of new retail delivery points (for example, new/upgraded substations, transformers) to 
provide the distribution capacity necessary to accommodate greater amounts of large-scale DG projects 
interconnecting to MECo’s EPS.   

The purpose of this monthly report is to provide updates for ongoing ASO studies that implicate three or 
more DG applications or more than 15MW of DG capacity in accordance with the Department’s 
Distributed Generation Guidelines for Interconnection (DG Guidelines).   

Central/Western Scope 
The ASO study in Central/Western MA has completed and was recommended for approval by ISO-NE at 
the 6/14/2022 RC meeting. One additional Group Study has been opened for the Central/Western area 
and conversations have been initiated with ISO-NE and New England Power Company (NEP) relative to 
course of study as it relates to efficiency and potential scope in anticipation of ASO study requirements 
as the distribution study matures.   

Southern Scope 
Distribution Group Studies have commenced for about 33MW of DG proposed in the 
Uxbridge/Whitinsville area (currently being referred to as Hopedale – West). The ASO study for this area 
will commence once PSCAD model deficiencies are resolved. Ten additional Group Studies have been 
opened for the Southern MA area and conversations have been initiated with ISO-NE and NEP relative to 
course of study as it relates to efficiency and potential scope in anticipation for ASO study requirements 
as those distribution studies mature.  

Northern Scope 
Based on the reporting criteria in the DG Guidelines, there are no ongoing ASO studies to report on in 
this area. While there are no ongoing ASO studies to report on in this area, 7 Group Studies have been 
opened for the Northern area and conversations have been initiated with ISO-NE and NEP relative to 
course of study as it relates to efficiency and potential scope in anticipation of ASO study requirements 
as those distribution studies mature. 

Group Study and Associated ASO Study  
Group study participants will likely require participation in an ASO study driven either by ISO-NE and/or 
New England Power Company (NEP) requirements related to solutions identified for the Group Study. 
Substations involved in a Group Study will be identified as requiring an ASO study because of the 
number of MW in the common study area. 

Process
ISO New England Tariff Process Applicable to DG Interconnections 

djone
Highlight









Working Draft Tuesday, September 13, 2022 
 

22 
 
 

Any additional expenses for professional review of the plans, survey, or 
inspections shall also be paid by applicant in accordance with the hiring of 
outside consultants (MGL Ch. 44 Sec. 53G, See Appendix D.). 

e) A certified list of abutters within 300 feet (cost will be borne by the 
applicant). If abutting property owners are located in a different Town, 
those abutters shall be notified as well.  

f) A list of requested waivers from the Subdivision Rules and Regulations (see 
Appendix E). 

g) A more detailed Development Impact Statement (see Appendix C). 
 

2.4.3. Contents 
 

The Definitive Plan shall be prepared by a current Registered Civil Engineer and 
current Registered Land Surveyor in good standing. The Plan shall be at a scale 
of one inch to forty feet (1"=40'), unless otherwise specified by the Planning 
Board. Sheet size shall not exceed 24" x 36". If multiple sheets are used, they 
shall be accompanied by an index sheet showing the entire subdivision. The 
data required below may be on separate sheets as is necessary. 

 
The Definitive Plan shall contain the following information:  

 
a) Subdivision name, boundaries, north point, date, legend, and bench 

mark(s). All elevations shall be to the USGS bench marks. 
b) Name and address of the owners of record, the applicant, the engineer and 

surveyor and their official seals. 
c) Abutters from latest available Assessor’s records unless the applicant has 

knowledge of any changes subsequent to the latest available Assessor’s 
records. 

d) Existing and proposed lines of streets, sidewalks, shared use paths, rights of 
way, easements, and public or common areas within the subdivision. 
Proposed names of new streets shall be shown. 

e) Location, names and present widths of street(s) bounding, approaching, or 
within reasonable proximity of the subdivision. 

f) Zoning districts of all the areas shown on the plan. 
g) Key plan showing location of the subdivision at a scale of one inch equals 

one thousand feet (1"=1000'), and an index plan at a scale of one inch 
equals two hundred feet (1"=200'), or at a scale matching that used on the 
Assessors maps. 



Working Draft Tuesday, September 13, 2022 
 

23 
 
 

h) Existing (broken line) and proposed (solid line) topography at two (2) foot 
contour intervals including the finished grade of all lots. 

i) Street frontage, lot numbers and areas of lots. 
j) Location of all natural waterways and water bodies within and adjacent to 

the subdivision. 
k) Location of significant site features located within the proposed right-of-way 

such as existing stone walls, fences, buildings, large trees (with a minimum 
diameter of 18” measured at 4’ DBH (Diameter at Breast Height)), flood 
plains, and rock outcroppings. 

l) Boundaries of lands subject to the Massachusetts Wetlands Protection Act. 
m) Location and limits of soil types, particularly Agricultural Soils, consistent 

with the soils classification maps prepared by the Natural Resources 
Conservation Service. 

n) Areas where the depth of natural soil to bedrock is four (4) feet or less. 
o) The extent of any Interim Wellhead Protection Areas and Recharge Areas. 
p) Delineation of slopes of twenty-five percent (25%) or greater. 
q) Areas delineated as “BioMap Core Habitat” or “Supporting Natural 

Landscape” on the Massachusetts BioMap Project developed by the 
Massachusetts Natural Heritage & Endangered Species Program. 

r) Location of all permanent monuments, properly identified as to whether 
proposed or existing. 

s) If requested by the Board of Health, the location and results of all 
percolation tests to evaluate subsurface conditions for each lot in the 
prospective subdivision. These tests will be done if individual sewer systems 
are proposed. The tests will be done in accordance with the State Sanitary 
Code and the regulations of the Town of Ware Board of Health. 

t) Location of all existing wells and areas of potential well locations for each 
proposed lot. 

u) If utilizing public water, the size, pressure and location of existing and 
proposed water supply facilities. 

v) If utilizing public water, the size, pressure and location of all fire hydrants, 
pump, water lines between hydrants and pump, and source(s) of water for 
firefighting. 

w) If utilizing public sanitary sewer, the size, capacity and location of existing 
and proposed components of all sanitary sewer facilities. 

x) Location of all the following improvements unless specifically waived in 
writing by the Board:  street paving, bike lanes, sidewalks, shared use paths, 
street lighting standards, all utilities above and below ground (i.e., 
electricity, phone, cable), curbs, gutters, storm drainage, and all easements 



Working Draft Tuesday, September 13, 2022 
 

24 
 
 

(with statement of the purpose of each such easement) including any 
required utility easements outside of the right-of-way. 

y) The location of core borings taken along the center line of the proposed 
road every 100’ to a depth of 6’.  The logs of such core borings shall be 
included. 

z) A plan for Stormwater Management and Erosion and Sediment Control, 
along with all supportive information and documentation, must be 
submitted as part of the Definitive Subdivision Plan submission approval. 
Wherever possible the proposed drainage system shall be designed to 
utilize, and be compatible with, the existing drainage patterns and existing 
natural features of the site. 

 
The storm water management plan shall be designed to incorporate and 
address the stormwater management for the entire proposed development, 
including anticipated buildout of individual lots. 

 
Detention ponds shall be utilized wherever possible, although other 
methods will be entertained where detention ponds are determined, by the 
Board, not to be feasible. The systems shall also be designed such that the 
volumes and velocities of storm water leaving the site after construction 
shall not exceed that of the pre-construction state of the site. 
 
Detention ponds, retention ponds and other storm water drainage 
structures, not located within the proposed existing street right-of-way, 
must be located on their own individual parcel, and may not be included as 
a part of any intended building lot. Such individual parcel shall be placed 
under the ownership, control, and responsibility of a Homeowner’s 
Association, or other approved equal by the Planning Board, created for 
such purpose. An easement shall be granted to the entity owning the street 
(including its successors and assigns) authorizing the discharge of storm 
water into said drainage structure. Said association shall be responsible for: 

• the maintenance, repair, and improvement of the storm water 
drainage structure ensuring its continued functioning capability as 
designed and constructed 

• maintaining a bank account at all times, with a balance of no less 
than an amount determined by the Director of Public Works as being 
sufficient, for the purpose of paying for said maintenance and 
improvement 



Working Draft Tuesday, September 13, 2022 
 

25 
 
 

• maintaining an insurance policy in the amount of at least one million 
dollars ($1,000,000.00) 

• having said structure inspected, and maintained, repaired and 
improved as needed, at least once a year by a qualified person/firm 
(i.e. engineer, landscaper as appropriate) 

• having said qualified person firm forward a written report, at least 
once each calendar year, certifying said inspection and any 
maintenance, repairs, and improvements that were required and 
undertaken to the Planning Board and Director of Public Works. 

 
The developer shall provide an easement on the parcel to the Town, and 
similar wording shall also be included in any Homeowner’s Association 
bylaw or ordinance, where, should said association fail in any of its 
aforementioned responsibilities as listed above, give the Town the right to 
intercede and conduct any of the maintenance, repairs and improvements 
that it feels are necessary to ensure the proper functioning of the structure, 
and assess the association the cost of said maintenance, repairs and 
improvements, plus a 20% administrative fee. 

 
aa) Sufficient data including the length, bearings, radii, and central angle to 

determine the exact location, direction, and length of every street, and way, 
lot line and boundary line, and to establish these lines on the ground. 

bb) Profiles shall be prepared as follows: 
• A horizontal scale of 1" = 40'. 
• A vertical scale of 1" = 4'. 
• Existing grade of road center line drawn in fine black solid line. 
• Existing right sideline drawn in fine black dotted line. 
• Existing left sideline drawn in fine black dash line. 
• All elevations shall refer to the U.S. Coast and Geodetic Survey 

benchmarks. 
• Proposed roadway center line grades drawn in heavy red line with 

precise elevations at point of vertical tangency, point of vertical contact, 
high point and low point. 

• Rates of roadway gradient shown in percentage. 
• Size, location and rates of gradient of proposed stormwater 

management facilities, drains, sewer lines, catch basins, manholes, as 
well as required new waterways, and sizes of all pipes. 

• Invert and rim elevations of each manhole or catch basin shall be shown. 



Working Draft Tuesday, September 13, 2022 
 

26 
 
 

• As long as the work is related to the proposed subdivision, profiles shall 
be shown even if the new work is outside said subdivision. 

• Water mains will be shown in profile to demonstrate sufficient clearance 
of other structures. 

• Size and location of all other utilities to be placed in the right of way. 
These shall be placed so as to minimize flood damage. 

• Location of any intersected public or private way. 
cc) Cross sections details shall comply with the Typical Section contained in 

Appendix B and shall include: street section showing paving, crown, berm, 
shoulder and distance to the right of way line, sidewalks, bike lanes and 
cross sections for any stormwater management facilities, drainage trench. 

dd) Suitable space to record the action of the Board and signatures of Board 
members. 

ee) The following Statements shall appear on all plans: 
1. Planning Board approval of any subdivision shall be deemed revoked 

in all cases where the construction of ways and installation of 
municipal services has not been completed or where the applicant 
(his agents or assigns) has failed to meet any conditions of said 
approval by the completion deadline date stated in the Subdivision 
Approval, unless such time is extended in writing between the 
applicant (his agents or assigns) and the Planning Board in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 2.4.9 (Completion Time 
Schedule, of the Town of Ware Subdivision Rules and Regulations 
Governing the Subdivisions of land). 

2. Compliance with the requirements of the Town of Ware Subdivision 
Rules and Regulations, unless they have specifically been waived by 
the Planning Board, are required as part of the approval of this plan.  

3. Approval of this plan shall be automatically revoked if recorded more 
than six (6) months following the date of endorsement unless 
specifically waived prior to such expiration by the Planning Board. 

ff) Location of all special flood hazard areas as determined from Flood 
Insurance Rate Maps, designated as Zones A and A1-A30, for the Town of 
Ware, as well as a note on the plan stating the Community Panel Number(s) 
and whether or not the subject property is in a Special Flood Hazard Area. 

gg) Landscaping Plan showing the location of all existing and proposed 
landscaping, including the center of any proposed cul-de-sacs.  Tree species 
must be approved by the Tree Warden.  Indicate which large trees (with a 
minimum diameter of 18” measured at 4’ DBH (Diameter at Breast Height)) 
are proposed to be removed within the proposed right-of-way.   



Working Draft Tuesday, September 13, 2022 
 

27 
 
 

hh) Traffic Analysis. The developer shall be required to provide a traffic analysis 
prepared by a registered traffic engineer. This report must bear the traffic 
engineer’s stamp and detail the number of vehicle trips generated per day, 
and how traffic will affect the surrounding road network. This analysis must 
conform to the standards contained in the most recent version of the 
Massachusetts Department of Transportation Highway Division Traffic and 
Safety Engineering 25% Design Submission Guidelines.  This plan should 
explain traffic impacts, types of streets, opportunities for public transit 
access, impacts on vehicle, pedestrian and bicycle circulation and include 
the following: 

1. Estimated daily and peak hour vehicle trips generated by the 
proposed use, traffic patterns for vehicles and pedestrians showing 
adequate access to and from the site, and adequate vehicular and 
pedestrian circulation within the site. Previous generated data may 
be used but may not be more than two years old.  

2. Traffic flow patterns at the site, including entrances and egresses 
and curb cuts on site and within 200 feet of the site 

3. An interior traffic and pedestrian circulation plan designed to 
minimize conflicts and safety problems. 

4. Adequate pedestrian access, including provisions for sidewalks to 
provide access to adjacent properties and between individual 
businesses within a development. 

5. Safe provision for school bus stops and public transit stops when 
appropriate. 

ii) Construction Quantities. The applicant shall submit a detailed estimate for 
all construction within the proposed roadway layout and/or public utility 
easements, certified by the project's Registered Professional Engineer. Said 
estimate shall be based on the latest approved edition of "Standard 
Specifications for Highways and Bridges" of the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts, and shall include:   

1. Schedule of Values for Subdivision Construction, (see Form B: 
Definitive Subdivision Construction Cost Estimate) 

2. Total amount for cost of completion of project.  
3. Costs adjusted to account for municipal prevailing wages rates  
4. Costs shall be revisited and adjusted every five (5) years for an 

inflation/safety factor 
jj) The applicant shall include a maintenance plan for the subdivision right-of-

ways, easements and roads for the time prior to acceptance by the Town. 
The maintenance plan should include provision for the maintenance of road 



Working Draft Tuesday, September 13, 2022 
 

28 
 
 

pavement, sidewalks, water and sanitary sewer, stormwater management, 
soil settling problems, street sweeping, snowplowing and clearing of snow 
from sidewalks and shared use paths, maintaining vegetative stabilization of 
all right-of-ways and easements, erosion controls, fall leaf clean up, catch 
basin and drainage system cleaning, and other provisions as determined to 
be necessary by the Planning Board. 

kk) Road Acceptance. All requirements as listed under Section 2.4.14 in the 
Town of Ware Subdivision Regulations.   

ll) Any other information that the Board may deem necessary. 
 

2.4.4 Review by the Board of Health as to Suitability of the Land 

At the time of the filing of the Definitive Plan with the Board, two (2) copies shall 
also be filed with the Board of Health. The Board of Health shall report in writing 
its approval or disapproval of said Plan. In the event of disapproval it shall make 
specific findings as to which if any of the lots shown on said Plan cannot be used 
as building sites without injury to the public health. The Board of Health shall 
include specific findings and the reasons therefore in such report, and where 
possible it shall make recommendations for adjustments necessary for the Plan's 
approval. Any approval by the Board shall be on the condition that lots deemed 
injurious to the public health shall not be built upon without prior consent of the 
Board of Health. The Board shall endorse on the plan such conditions, specifying 
the lots to which said conditions apply. Failure by the Board of Health to report 
on the proposed subdivision within forty-five (45) days after the filing of the Plan 
shall be deemed approval of the Plan by the Board of Health. 

All subdivisions shall apply to connect to the Town sanitary sewerage system 
where this system is available and where it is feasible to do so. Every lot not 
served by the Town sewerage system shall have an adequate approved sewage 
disposal system satisfactory to the Board of Health. 

 
2.4.5 Review by Other Town of Ware Departments 

 
The Board shall, upon submission of a Definitive Plan, transmit one copy each to 
the Board of Selectmen, Fire Department, Department of Public Works, Building 
Department, Police Department, Conservation Commission and any consultants 
that may be selected by the Board for their review.  Comments and 
recommendations shall be made to the Board within forty-five days following 
receipt of a copy of the plan. 

 



Working Draft Tuesday, September 13, 2022 
 

29 
 
 

2.4.6 Public Hearing 
 

Before approval, modification, and approval or disapproval of the Definitive Plan 
is given, a public hearing shall be held by the Board. Said Public Hearing shall be 
held after the Board of Health makes its report or after the 45-day period to 
report expires. Notice of the specific time and place shall be given by the Board 
at the expense of the Applicant by advertisement in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the Town of Ware once in each of two successive weeks, the first 
publication being not less than fourteen days before the date of such hearing. A 
copy of the Definitive Plan shall be available to the Public through the Town 
Clerk's office, not less than fourteen (14) days before the date of the Public 
Hearing. 

 
A copy of said notice of public hearing shall be mailed by the Planning Board to 
the applicant and to all owners of land abutting upon the land included in such 
plan as appearing on the Abutters from latest available Assessor’s records. The 
Planning Board shall also send notice of a public hearing to the following: the 
Board of Selectmen, the Board of Health, the Conservation Commission, the Fire 
Department, the Police Department, the Superintendent of Schools, the 
Building Inspector, the Water Department and the Department of Public Works. 

 
2.4.7 Approval, Modification or Disapproval 

After the required public hearing but within ninety (90) days from submission, in 
the case for Type II and Type III subdivision, or Type I subdivision that has 
submitted a preliminary plan, or within one-hundred and thirty-five (135) for Type 
I subdivision which no preliminary plan was submitted, the Board shall take final 
action upon the Definitive Plan. It shall approve the Plan as submitted, modify and 
approve the Plan or disapprove the Plan. If the Board modifies or disapproves the 
Plan, it shall state with its vote the reasons for its action.  

The failure of the Board either to take final action or to file with the Town Clerk a 
certificate of such action regarding the definitive plan submitted by an Applicant 
within one hundred thirty-five (135) days after such submission, or such further 
time as may be agreed upon at the written request of the applicant, shall be 
deemed to be an approval thereof. Notice of such extension of time shall be filed 
forthwith by the Board with the Town Clerk. 

Approvals of Definitive Subdivision Plans are transferable only upon the prior 
approval of the Planning Board. 



Town Planner Update: September 15th, 2022 
• The Planning & Community Development Department is currently looking for an Intern 

o The Intern would be responsible for assisting the Director with various Planning 
Initiatives including the Open Space and Recreation Plan. 

o Local Universities including UMass Amherst will be reached out to.  
• The Façade Improvement Program Application window is still open 

o Applications are due to the Pioneer Valley Planning Commission by October 1.  
o They can be found on the Town of Ware Planning & Community Development 

webpage under “Planning & Community Development News”.  
• The Planning Board and Selectboard will be holding a Joint meeting on Tuesday, 

September 20th. 
o During a normally scheduled Selectboard meeting, both Boards will decide 

between two applications for the Vacant seat (which will expire in April 2023).  
o More details will be provided as the meeting agenda becomes available.  


	9-15-2022 PB Agenda Stamped
	9-1-22 PB Minutes
	13
	TOWN OF WARE

	ANR-2022-06 Plans
	ANR-2022-09 PLAN
	SP-2022-08 Legal Notice Stamped
	SP-2022-08 Application Materials
	Sections 2.4.3 to 2.4.7
	Update 9-15-22



